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PROCEEDINGS IN CAMERA:

COMMISSIONER:  In terms of appearances, can I note Ms Enbom 
and Ms Argiropoulos this morning for Victoria Police.  
Mr Goodwin for the State.  Now I understand Ms Ristivojevic 
is here - - -   

MS RISTIVOJEVIC:  Yes, good morning, I seek leave to appear 
today in relation to Mr Flynn's evidence on behalf of 
Mr Mokbel. 

COMMISSIONER:  Mr Anthony Mokbel?  

MS RISTIVOJEVIC:  Yes. 

COMMISSIONER:  That's appropriate, Mr Winneke, from your 
perspective?  

MR WINNEKE:  Yes, Commissioner. 

COMMISSIONER:  Does anybody have any submissions to the 
contrary?  No.  I'll give you leave to appear in respect of 
the evidence of Mr Flynn on behalf of Mr Anthony Mokbel.  
And I've also been informed that legal representatives for 
Mr Higgs and Mr Barbaro intend to seek leave to appear for 
the witnesses Biggin, Buick and Bateson.  So we don't need 
to deal with that now but I'm just mentioning that.  I 
think we're going to be with Mr Flynn all day today but if 
you could take that on notice, thanks, Mr Goodwin and also 
Ms Enbom, so we can - I assume, Mr Winneke, the Commission 
is comfortable with that?  

MR WINNEKE:  I haven't seen the application but - - - 

COMMISSIONER:  I don't know if there is one.  There's not a 
written one. 

MR WINNEKE:  I've got no doubt there's a reasonable 
justification for it.  I'll just clarify that. 

COMMISSIONER:  Yes, over time.  So we'll deal with that, 
we'll take that on notice.  All right then, so I think we 
can proceed now with the witness.  If Mr Flynn can return 
to the witness box, thank you.  And of course you're on 
your former oath.  

<DALE FLYNN, recalled: 
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The Commission has evidence that Ms Gobbo did at times, did 
at least at one time represent him?---Yes. 

Without going into the details of it, there's a reference 
to a discussion that you had with this person?---Yes, there 
is. 

And that person was in effect offering himself up to 
provide assistance, is that right?  In effect if you go 
down, a third of the way down, "Wants to know what's in it 
for him", do you see that?---Yes, I think from my 
recollection there was - - -  

COMMISSIONER:  We've got something on the screen but I 
don't know it's the right one, you said 20 February?  

MR WINNEKE:  28th, Commissioner.  It's 212 and it's not in 
the materials - - -  

COMMISSIONER:  We do actually have something. 

MR WINNEKE:  I think you'll find, Commissioner, that's not 
the page that Mr Flynn is dealing with.  

COMMISSIONER:  Thank you.  

MR WINNEKE:  What I was simply wanting to ask you is this:  
Gobbo has acted for this person.  This person is now saying 
to you that he wants to assist and - - -  

COMMISSIONER:  Mr Winneke, could the witness be shown 
Exhibit 81 because I don't know who he is talking about. 

MR WINNEKE:  Commissioner, I don't want to - - -  

COMMISSIONER:  It's not on Exhibit 81?  

MR WINNEKE:  No, it's not, I don't believe it is.  Mr Flynn 
knows who he is, in fact I think I asked him questions 
about it last week?---Yes. 

I don't want to raise it if there's any suggestion that 
this person went on to become the provider of 
information?---No, there's not. 

There's not?---No. 
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Clearly your understanding is that that's Ms Gobbo 
providing that information?---Yes. 

And the reason that you make reference, or at least you 
write that as HS and not Gobbo is for what, what 
purpose?---Well that was a standard practice that police 
would conduct for any information that when I receive it I 
know it's coming from a human source. 

Right.  And also if your diaries at some stage are called 
for by either barristers representing accused persons or 
subpoenaed, then there would be an argument about whether 
or not it would be appropriate or otherwise to identify the 
person who is the human source?---Yes. 

There might well be a claim of public interest 
immunity?---Yes, there might be. 

Over the fact that there's a source or the name of the 
source?---Well, the standard policy for Victoria Police in 
relation to human sources was simply a line of it's the 
policy of Victoria Police to neither confirm or acknowledge 
the existence of a human source.  So that would say the 
fact of a human source. 

So if a diary was called for, would there be any redactions 
made to the diary?  Say, for example, if you have a look at 
your diary dated 16 March and it says, "Briefed by 
Detective Acting Inspector O'Brien from HS.  HS 
identified", et cetera.  Do you see that?---Yes. 

If you were asked to produce your diaries, in what form 
would that entry be produced?---I would redact that, that 
part of the entry. 

And what would you take out?---I would possibly take out 
the whole entry. 

It may well be that the entire entry from 13:10 would be 
blacked out, is that right?---Yes. 

Is that something which would be identified as public 
interest immunity or would it simply be handed over with 
that section blacked out or indeed not handed over at 
all?---No, in - as I indicated to you on the 20th, that my 
procedure there was to redact my notes and then hand it 
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over to whoever requested them.  So I would just hand it 
over. 

If that was the only entry with respect to a relevant 
matter, which was the subject of the call for the notes, 
that page might not be handed over at all?---Possibly. 

In which case a person would not even know whether there 
was a relevant communication on that day?---Yes. 

So it wouldn't be the case that a person would be able to 
look at your notes and say, "Here's a PII matter, I want 
the judge to have a look at this and form a view as to 
whether or not this is a valid claim for public interest 
immunity"?---Yes, that would depend on whether a redacted 
copy was handed over or not.  As I indicated, it's possible 
if that was the only relevant entry it wouldn't be and your 
statement is correct. 

That would be an unfortunate situation surely.  Perhaps if 
you can answer that question firstly?---I'm sorry, which 
question do you want me to answer?  

If, for example, and this is, perhaps it's hypothetical at 
this stage, if that page was not handed over at all, 
assuming it's relevant, if the page isn't handed over at 
all, the court, the defence would never know that there was 
a relevant entry there, albeit, which was the subject of a 
claim for public interest immunity, do you accept the 
proposition?---Yes, I do. 

The question I put to you was that would be an unfortunate 
situation because neither the court nor anyone else would 
ever know that something had occurred on that day which may 
well be relevant to an investigation and charges, but which 
was in relation to which a claim of PII was made?---I do 
follow what you're saying but I just don't think I've ever 
considered it in that type of detail.  My memory in 
relation to protecting human sources, which is protect 
human sources whenever we can, and generally we've been 
fairly successful in excluding this type of information 
that might reveal it, so I don't know if I've ever thought 
that way.  I understand what you're asking me but it was 
just a matter I'd assume it's source related, we redact it. 

I follow that.  With the idea being this, "We don't know 
anyone to know we've got a human source because as soon as 
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we hand over a page in which there's a claim for public 
interest immunity it telegraphs to an accused there's a 
human source"?---Yes, it does. 

Or alternatively it might be police methodology?---Yes. 

But chances are it will be relating to a source?---Yes.  

If that source or the fact of the source or who the source 
is, is in fact relevant, then that information doesn't come 
to light?---Well I was of the opinion that the existence of 
the human source needed to be protected so from that point 
of view I was going to say wasn't relevant, I understand 
you're saying it might be relevant, but generally we would 
think it's not relevant and we would just want to protect 
that human source. 

Ultimately you accept this proposition, the question of 
public interest immunity is a question for the 
court?---Yes, I do. 

To determine.  It's not for the police officer to determine 
PII, do you accept that proposition?---Yes. 

Looking back now, do you accept that that is a wrong way of 
going about it, that is simply not handing something over 
because you take the view, rightly or wrongly, that the 
accused person should not be aware that there is a human 
source?---I probably - well I accept that with these 
matters which were quite common there's probably avenues 
for me to get further advice in relation to how I should 
have handled it.  

Yes?---I thought the practice I was using at the time was a 
common practice at that stage.  I could be wrong there but 
I thought it was a common practice. 

I suggest to you it was a common practice.  That was the 
way in which it was done?---Yes. 

Do you accept it perhaps still is done that way?---I can't 
comment on that. 

The reality is in this case this human source in this entry 
is Nicola Gobbo?---Yes. 

We know now that Nicola Gobbo was both an agent of police 
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and acting for people who were the subject of your 
investigation?---Yes. 

And obviously the High Court has said what it's said and 
looking back now you would accept that there are real 
problems with you receiving information from a human source 
who is in fact representing the person who is the very 
subject of the investigation?---Yes. 

And what has occurred is that this never came to light, do 
you accept that?---Yes, I do. 

Part of the reason that it never came to light is because 
this process was carried on by investigators, that is by 
withholding material which would have enabled people to at 
least look into it and argue whether or not it's 
appropriate to make the claim for public interest immunity, 
do you accept that?---Well, in part, yes, I accept that 
there's, this example, and this is an extremely unusual 
example. 

It may be?---Highlights that this would have been 
potentially valuable.  But as I said this was an unusual 
matter and I can only go back to that earlier practice of 
my understanding. 

I understand what you're saying?---That anything to do with 
a human source was just not provided. 

I suppose considering it now, the appropriate way of going 
about it would be to say well look, if you're making a 
claim for public interest immunity it would be to get legal 
advice firstly, is it appropriate to make this claim and is 
it appropriate to do it in a way in which the practice 
appears to have been, that is by simply not providing the 
notes?---Yes, that would have been an option, yes. 

It may have been an option then but the reality is the 
practice was that detectives said, "Look, we've got to 
protect our source.  We know what public interest immunity 
is about.  We understand that informers are a no-go area 
and we believe that this is the way we do it, by simply not 
producing notes"?---That's certainly how I was acting at 
the time, yes. 

I'm not suggesting you were unusual about that, this was 
the way in which you were, whether you're taught to do it 
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at Detective Training School or you learn that approach on 
the job by speaking to more senior officers, it was the 
accepted way of going about it?---I'm not sure if I'm 
willing to concede with that because even note-taking 
itself differed between, from officers to officers, so the 
level of details.  So there may be some officers who would 
not put any information in relation to human sources in 
their diary, but I've always used my diary, you know, as 
the one source of truth for everything that I did so I 
would put as much information in there as possible. 

I follow that.  You would hold the view that someone who 
deliberately doesn't put something in a diary, who doesn't 
record relevant information simply because that may mean 
that information would be the subject of scrutiny and may 
mean that it would then come to light, would be a wrong way 
of going about it?---Well it wasn't the practice I 
followed, but I understand that, you know, there's a need 
to protect certain information we get and for that reason I 
understand that course of conduct. 

I follow that.  The whole point of making notes is to 
record contemporaneously what occurs?---Yes. 

Because in due course you're going to have to refresh your 
recollection.  You can't recall everything that occurred 
over many years so you need to record things?---Yes, I 
agree. 

If you adopt the practice of simply not recording things 
because it may mean a court or defence counsel on behalf of 
an accused person might find out something that we don't 
want them to find out, that would be another example of 
withholding relevant information, surely?---Well, I don't 
know if it's a practice that's done for the purpose of 
withholding information, it's just a practice that 
different people have different practices when they take 
notes and some are more detailed than others. 

But the effect of it is - there's two down sides to it, one 
is you don't get contemporaneous records, I'm focusing on 
this notion that you say some detectives, some police 
officers did adopt, that is not recording information 
because of the concern that it may reveal the fact of or 
the identity of a source.  There's two vices in that, one 
you don't get a record of relevant information and, two, if 
it does become a relevant issue no one is ever going to 
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perhaps as a personal association between the two of them, 
an emotional reliance?---Yes. 

So it was absolutely inevitable that Gobbo would become 
involved?---Yeah, I can't argue with that, yes. 

That's why your recollection is that there was some thought 
that it may be that she might not be available, that would 
be something that you'd considered?---As I said, it's just 
a thought that I have no diary entry of or can't back up in 
any way but I just thought it was a consideration that we 
looked at at some stage. 

COMMISSIONER:  That that's probably a good time for the 
midmorning break.  Ms Ristivojevic, your leave, as with the 
leave granted to all the potentially affected persons is 
subject to an undertaking, you've probably been told that. 

MS RISTIVOJEVIC:  Yes. 

COMMISSIONER:  The undertaking is that you'll only discuss 
with your client the aspects of confidential material 
relevant to obtaining instructions for potential 
cross-examination of the witnesses, that you will inform 
your client of any relevant non-publication orders of the 
Commission and/or extant suppression orders and the 
criminal sanctions that would apply with any breach of 
those orders and that you will not discuss the confidential 
information orally or in writing with any other person.  I 
take it you're happy to - - -  

MS RISTIVOJEVIC:  I agree with the undertaking. 

COMMISSIONER:  To make those undertakings.  Yes, thank you.  

MS RISTIVOJEVIC:  Yes. 

COMMISSIONER:  All right, we'll adjourn for a morning 
break.

(Short adjournment.) 

COMMISSIONER:  Yes, Mr Winneke.

MR WINNEKE:  Thanks Commissioner.  I was asking you about 
the discussions, and obviously you don't have a detailed 
recollection because we're now some years down the track, 
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she wasn't about, right?---Yes.  And to be clear, I think I 
indicated earlier that discussion - it could be part of 
this or it could have been discussion I had with my own 
investigators.  

It might well be said that this was a matter which was 
obvious to Victoria Police officers but despite that the 
fact is, and I'm putting to you what it might be 
considered, the police might well say to themselves, "Well, 
that might be a problem but who is going to find out about 
this and we want to get this bloke to assist us, so we'll 
just have to wear that risk".  Do you accept that, that 
that might well be one scenario?---Well it would be a 
scenario but I don't know if I agree that that was a 
discussion that was held on this occasion.

Right.  Because, see, what I'm suggesting to you is it is 
an obvious issue.  Ms Gobbo is saying, "Who the fuck's 
going to find out about it?"  What I'm suggesting to you is 
that it might be open to conclude that Victoria Police 
might have decided just to cover it up and to keep going 
regardless of this little problem?---I certainly wasn't 
part to any conversation where the scenario that you've put 
forward was discussed.

Right?---It was not ever a case of any scenario where we've 
got together and said, "Well, we're probably not doing the 
right thing here, but we'll get away with it, no one will 
find out about it so we'll do it anyway".  I was not part 
of any conversation that - - - 

Do you think it might well have been something that 
remained unsaid?  Whilst everyone was thinking about it, 
elephant in the room, no one really wanted to raise it?---I 
don't know I would agree with that as well.  I mean, you 
know, when you talk about human sources I do accept that 
generally we think that that information won't get out.

Yes?---So whether there's a subconscious or something along 
these lines, but it was certainly not part of any conscious 
decision making process that, "No, this is not right but 
we'll do it anyway because no one will find out".

The process is, as you've said before, look, as a matter of 
course we do not reveal our human sources?---That is 
correct, yes.
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Well I suggest it is.  All right.  I put to you that steps 
were taken to ensure that this information didn't get to 
the court and to defence barristers and you accept that, 
that diaries were amended or redacted in such a way that 
those notes or Ms Gobbo's involvement didn't come to light, 
do you accept that proposition or not?---Well I accept that 
like any other human source we would try and prevent the 
fact that she was a human source was released to anywhere 
outside Victoria Police, yes.

You did not go and seek legal advice from any of your 
lawyers about this?---Correct.

Did you have a discussion with Mr O'Brien about 
it?---Seeking legal advice?

Yes, about seeking legal advice?---Not that I can recall, 
no.

Did you speak to him about the problems that had been posed 
by Ms Gobbo turning up and advising?---No.

Because she didn't just turn up and provide legal advice, 
she actively assisted, she was present, wasn't she?---She 
was, yes.

With you?---Yes, she was.

In circumstances where she wasn't, I suggest, simply 
standing back and offering legal advice, she was actively 
involving herself in the process of convincing this fellow 
to assist police?---Certainly towards the end of the 
interviewing process I'd agree with that, yes.

I'd raised with you before this issue or at least 
possibility that it occurred to Ms Gobbo that she not only 
had been a person who was providing information but perhaps 
actively involved herself.  If we go to p.278.  Before I 
move on, were you ever told by the handlers at any stage 
prior to the arrest by the SDU that the whole ethics of 
this situation were "fucked", or words to that 
effect?---No, not that I can recall.

Do you think if you'd been told that you would recall 
that?---Yes, I do.

Did you consider that ethically the situation was complex 

VPL.0018.0002.0052

This document has been redacted for Public Interest Immunity claims made by Victoria Police. 
These claims are not yet resolved. 



 

 
  
  

 
  
  
  
  

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  
  
  

     

        
        

 

           
          

         
    

           
            

            
          
         

           
         

          
           

          
           
         

        
           
         

            
          

           
          

          
           
        

          
          

            
           

            
          

          
           

           
  

          
         

     

  
   

This document has been redacted for Public Interest Immunity claims made by Victoria Police. 
These claims are not yet resolved. 



  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  
  
  
  

 
  
  
  
  

 
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
  
  
  

 
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

 

             
        

            
            

         
         

    

             
          
        

         
          
            

           
          

  

          
          

           
  

           
         

      
      

           
          
        

        
           

     

           
         

    

          
            

           
          

         
         

  
   

This document has been redacted for Public Interest Immunity claims made by Victoria Police. 
These claims are not yet resolved. 



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47

12:30:20

12:30:23

12:30:25

12:30:30

12:30:31

12:30:34

12:30:37

12:30:40

12:30:44

12:30:51

12:30:54

12:30:57

12:31:02

12:31:07

12:31:11

12:31:15

12:31:16

12:31:18

12:31:23

12:31:27

12:31:32

12:31:37

12:31:40

12:31:40

12:31:46

12:31:49

12:31:51

12:31:55

12:31:57

12:32:02

12:32:03

12:32:06

12:32:11

12:32:16

12:32:21

12:32:25

12:32:26

.30/09/19  
FLYNN XXN - IN CAMERA

6791

You'd hope that there would be those sorts of 
conversations, wouldn't you?---Yes, I would.

And you don't know whether there were or not?---No, I 
don't. 

That sort of information, if, for example, it became 
apparent and came to the court's notice, for example on a 
plea, that the police had behaved or had countenance, if 
not encouraged that sort of behaviour, that might be very 
relevant to a sentence, for example?---It would be relevant 
to a whole lot of things.  It would be something I'd have 
to seek advice on if I became aware of it.

So that information, that should have come to light, that 
should have come out, I suggest to you, those sort of 
comments made by Ms Gobbo?---Well, again it's the conflict 
with the fact that she's a human source and that's 
something we're trying desperately to protect.  That is the 
problem with that scenario.

Would you accept that it's unfortunate that that 
information did not come to light very much earlier than 
now?---As we sit here today, yes, I accept that.  But I 
would still be in a quandary if the role that Ms Gobbo 
played as human source was not public at that stage, I'd 
still be very concerned about that information coming to 
light.

The reality is - I know this may well be hypothetical in 
one sense because you didn't know the information, but if 
you as an ethical police officer had that information 
available to you, you would be concerned about it, I take 
it?---Yes, I would be.

And you would want to get legal advice about it?---Yes, I 
agree, yes.

Indeed, you would certainly want to find out exactly what 
Gobbo is talking about and what she might well have done to 
encourage, incite or conspire?---Yes.

You wouldn't have wanted to, for example, discouraged her 
from the view or buried it or forgotten about it?---That's 
a fair comment, yes.

All right.  In your experience as a police officer it's not 
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unusual for public interest immunity claims to be made with 
respect to informers, do you accept that?---I wouldn't say 
it's common but it's made from time to time.

It would be appropriate, do you accept, to get legal advice 
about it?---Yes.

Often confidential affidavits are drawn up to show to the 
court so as no one else knows about it?---Yes, that's 
right.

That's a relatively easy process to do, it's not 
uncommon?---That's correct, yes.

Then the decision's taken out of your hands and it's put 
into the hands of the court?---Yes.

Why wouldn't you do that with respect to the position of 
Ms Gobbo?---Well to me the obvious answer is that because 
you know this was a unique set of circumstances because of 
Ms Gobbo's profession and the risk to her of, with the 
information she was providing and the people she was 
providing information about.  So, you know, I categorise 
this in a different category to all other human sources 
because of that.

She's still providing information to police but in this 
situation she's also doing other things which are 
potentially damaging to the criminal justice system and 
acting for people in relation to whom she's provided legal 
advice, incriminating information?---Well, that's something 
you're putting to me now that we weren't - you know, 
there's a whole lot of responses I've got to these 
questions.  Firstly, without trying to handball, but these 
decisions weren't my decisions to make, but I accept what 
you're saying, that I could raised them.  But I understand 
that with the concerns about seeking legal advice and 
identifying Ms Gobbo as a human source, I understand those 
concerns.

I accept the buck doesn't stop with you but this concern 
isn't something that resided solely with you, I 
suggest?---No, that's correct, yes.

Do you accept that there were other police officers who 
were aware of the same information that you were aware 
of?---Yes.
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five?

Yes?---No, I'm not sure what they're referring to.

Did you not see an operation order which contained notes, 
tactics and planning?---I saw an investigation plan.

Yes?---I'm not sure if you're referring to the same 
document or not.  I just can't remember if it had separate 
phases in it, it may have and I just haven't remembered it.  
But I knew there was an investigation plan in existence.

Do you know where that's likely to be because we don't 
believe we've got anything like that?---An investigation 
plan by, it was drafted by Senior Sergeant O'Brien.

We've discussed that, that was back in November of 
2005?---Yes, that's the document I'm referring to.

That's what you're referring to?---Yes.

As to whether there are any documents along these lines, 
"Briefing re Operation Posse phases four and five as per 
operation order.  Operation order in notes, tactics and 
planning", you don't know anything about that?---It's not 
ringing any bells, sorry.

COMMISSIONER:  Yes, that's a convenient time.  Now how are 
we going with this witness, how much longer do you think 
you'll be, Mr Winneke?

MR WINNEKE:  I would say certainly say well into tomorrow, 
Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER:  What sort of time are we looking at for 
cross-examination?  I just know that other witnesses would 
like to know a rough idea of when they're likely to be 
called.  Cross-examination is likely to be, Mr Nathwani?  

MR NATHWANI:  No more than an hour, probably less.

COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  Mr Chettle?  

MR CHETTLE:  Virtually none.

COMMISSIONER:  Virtually none.  Re-examination wouldn't be 
very long, Ms Argiropoulos?  
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MS ARGIROPOULOS:  No, Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER:  We might get on to another witness tomorrow?

MR WINNEKE:  I think it's unlikely, Commissioner, but it's 
possible.

COMMISSIONER:  The next witness is to be?

MR WINNEKE:  The next witness to be Mr Green.

COMMISSIONER:  Mr Green, all right.

MR WINNEKE:  Mr Chettle's client.  There's an issue perhaps 
with Mr Black I think for Thursday. 

MR CHETTLE:  I've explained to Mr Winneke the issue in 
relation to Mr Black for one day only.

COMMISSIONER:  Yes, all right.  We'll hopefully be able to 
accommodate that with other witnesses, we'll see.  Mr Green 
is next did you say?

MR WINNEKE:  Yes.

COMMISSIONER:  He won't be needed before lunchtime and by 
then we'll have a better idea when he might be needed. 

MR CHETTLE:  He's around.

COMMISSIONER:  Yes, all right.  There's no need for him to 
come in anyway tomorrow morning.  

MR CHETTLE:  Thank you.

COMMISSIONER:  Yes.  All right.  We'll adjourn until 2 
o'clock.  

<(THE WITNESS WITHDREW)

LUNCHEON ADJOURNMENT 
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earlier, but as I indicated I just don't remember much 
about it. 

Right, okay.  The expectation is that there would have been 
a document which was in effect setting out the interview 
strategy?---I think I've referred to it as the interview 
strategy, so that would make sense.  I just can't remember 
what it contained. 

If we can perhaps come to that process, which is the 
intermediate process if you like.  You weren't surprised 
that there was a no comment record of interview in the 
first place?---No, he'd - no, I wasn't surprised. 

He hadn't had the opportunity to speak face-to-face with 
the person who he thought was his lawyer, 
Ms Gobbo?---Correct. 

He had a discussion with her for a period of time and then 
Ms Gobbo leaves, right?---Yes. 

At about, somewhere in the region of 5.45?---Yes. 

Then there's the next stage of this process that occurs.  
You've gone upstairs to have this discussion and in your 
notes I think there's a reference to you speaking to 
Mr Biggin?---Yes. 

At that stage, and Mr Chettle has drawn this to my 
attention, he hadn't come on board at that stage with the 
SDU, there was a different set up at that stage.  He was 
the head of the unit which had comprised the Technical 
Support Unit, the Undercover Unit and another entity I 
can't recall at this stage.  Special Project Unit.  He was 
the head of that team at that stage?---Yes, well - - -  

Does that assist you in understanding why it was you would 
have been updating Biggin?---Well, it's probably the same 
result as what I said before the lunch break but just with 
different areas of the department involved.  He would have 
had areas involved, so that would have included special 
projects and it would have included surveillance units, and 
as the head of that unit I would have been updating him on 
the progress of the investigation. 

Would he have been the most senior officer at that stage 
who would have been available for you to speak to at 
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interview commenced at about 8 minutes past 9, is that 
correct?---Correct. 

I've got a copy of the record of interview and I don't know 
- I wonder if you could just have a look at this document.  
It's got on the back page VPL.0008.0001.150 and it's cut 
off, I wonder if you could just have a look at that 
document there?---Yes. 

Just flick through it.  Is that the record of interview 
that you conducted with Mr Rowe?---So it's both, it's the 
earlier interview that I conducted with Senior Constable 
Farrar. 

Yes?---At 4 o'clock, and then there's a second transcript 
of the interview that started at 9.08 pm with Mr Rowe. 

Commissioner, I'm going to tender it. 

MR CHETTLE:  I tendered it, it's Exhibit 365. 

COMMISSIONER:  Thank you Mr Chettle.  

MR WINNEKE:  Thanks.  

COMMISSIONER:  We're not sure whether that was in fact the 
whole interview or just one question in the record of 
interview. 

MR CHETTLE:  I purported to tender the whole lot, whether I 
succeeded - - -  

MR WINNEKE:  It's VPL.0008.0001.1429.  

COMMISSIONER:  My note is that it's the whole record of 
interview. 

MR CHETTLE:  There's two VPLs.  The one I used was the 
Supreme Court number, but I tendered it at the time, 
Commissioner.  The 365 was the number you gave it. 

COMMISSIONER:  Yes, I've got it that it's the whole record 
but the official list says it's just question 430.  Maybe 
we could just - - -  

MR CHETTLE:  At p.5229 of the transcript I tendered the 
whole record of interview. 
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or the issues with respect to Ms Gobbo or not?---I wasn't 
part of that conversation.

All right?---But I'd be reasonably confident to say that I 
don't think it was ever be suggested that it was mentioned 
that Ms Gobbo was  human source with Victoria Police.

These discussions can be had with permanent prosecutors and 
they are had on occasions, are they?---Yes.

About a person being an informer?---Well certainly when it 
gets to a stage where we're seeking discounts and things 
like that it becomes, we discuss that with the OPP, yes.

When it comes to questions of public interest immunity is 
that normally done with your own legal advisors or the 
VGSO?---I would depend on the circumstances I suppose.  

Yes?---If it was just relevant to an ongoing prosecution it 
would probably be done with a prosecutor.  If it was 
something that we didn't want it to get to that stage, well 
then we'd seek legal advice.

There's sort of an intermediate position where you don't 
want to put it out to the prosecution if you can avoid it 
and you go to the VGSO to get an advice from them or to 
internal police lawyers; is that right?---That's correct, 
yes.

If you had on this night decided, look, there were too many 
complexities, it's way out of the experience of any of the 
people involved in this operation, what's occurring 
tonight, we really need to get some advice about it, who 
would have been approached?---Well, I would suggest we 
would go internally before we went externally.  How that 
would be done on this time of day or night I'm not sure but 
that's what we'd look at.

Do you believe that Mr Overland was aware of these 
complexities?---I only say that I do believe it, that he 
was aware of it at some stage, whether it was - are you 
asking on that particular night or not?

Yes?---I don't know.  As I indicated earlier, I believe 
Mr O'Brien was reporting to Mr Overland at some stage but 
to what and what was discussed, you know, it would be a 
reasonable presumption that all these issues would be 
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tender it just yet.

COMMISSIONER:  If you're playing some more tomorrow we've 
got overnight so let's take out the names from the audio.  
In future, if you're able to, if you have enough time to do 
it, I would - to give overnight notice to our very capable 
people.  It would be best to have the names taken out.

MR WINNEKE:  Yes, Commissioner, the only thing I'd say in 
relation to that if it does mean that the tape - - -

COMMISSIONER:  If it effects the quality of the tape.

MR WINNEKE:  If it effects the quality of it or it loses 
the - - -

COMMISSIONER:  That's a different matter then.  If it can 
be done without affecting the quality of the tape I think 
we should try and do it.

MR WINNEKE:  Yes, thanks Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER:  All right.  Sorry, did you say we're going 
to continue on, so you don't want to tender this at this 
stage?

MR WINNEKE:  There's a couple more extracts and I think 
Mr Chettle wanted me to play something as well.

COMMISSIONER:  Following on from 182?

MR WINNEKE:  Yes.  Perhaps if I leave that and I'll tender 
them as a bundle tomorrow.

COMMISSIONER:  Okay, that's fine.

MR WINNEKE:  If it please the court.

COMMISSIONER:  We'll adjourn until 9.30 tomorrow morning. 

<(THE WITNESS WITHDREW)

ADJOURNED UNTIL TUESDAY 1 OCTOBER 2019
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